UNITED

NATIONS
. : Distr.
Economic and Social CENERAL
Council E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1

28 Novenber 1996

Oiginal: ENGISH

COW TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Fi fteenth session

SUMWVARY RECORD OF THE SECOND PART ( PUBLI C) *
OF THE 35th MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Friday, 22 Novenber 1996, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson:. M. CRI SSA
(Vi ce- Chai r person)
CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPCRTS:

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTIES | N ACOCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT ( continued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (continued)

* The summary record of the first part (closed) of the meeting appears
as docunent E/ C 12/1996/ SR 35.

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They shoul d be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 96-19283 (E)



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 2

The public part of the neeting was called to order at 11.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPCRTS:

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTIES | N ACOCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (agenda item4) ( conti nued)

Third periodic report of Belarus (continued) (E 1994/104/ Add. 6;
E/ C 12/ 1995/ LQ 6/ Rev. 1; HRI/ CORE 1/ Add. 70)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, M. Antanovich, Ms. Satolina,

Ms. Kupchyna and M. Shcherbau (Belarus) took places at the Conmttee table

2. M. ANTANOVICH (Belarus) said that he wished to read out a set of
witten replies to questions put by the Commttee the previous day. The text
coul d be made avail abl e shortly to assist the Conmttee in its examnation of
his country's third periodic report (E 1994/104/Add.6). It would further be
recall ed that an addendumto that report, in English (wth no docunent
synbol ), had al so been subnitted for the Commttee's consideration

3. Regardi ng the functions of the Constitutional Court, it should be noted
that there was an exhaustive list of persons or entities - including the
Presi dent, the Suprene Council, the Suprenme Court or H gher Econom c Court and

the Procurator-Ceneral - that could apply directly for a ruling on the
constitutionality of any donmestic or international instrunent. Cher State
bodi es, associations and private individuals were not entitled to apply
directly to the Court, but could make representations through those
designated entities. Any laws, treaties and other instruments found to be
unconstitutional by the Court, as violating human rights and freedons, were
consi dered wholly or partly devoid of |egal force.

4. The referendumwas used to decide nmajor issues of public or social life
or to obtain the views of citizens on them The result of a referendum held
at national or |local |level could thus be binding or advisory in nature.
Voting was universal, free, equal and secret. National referenduns did not
deal with issues entailing violation of the people's inalienable rights to a
sovereign State and to a Belarusian culture and | anguage, or violation of the
territorial integrity of Belarus; nor could they relate to special or

emer gency measures concerning |aw and order, health and security, taxation,
finance or ammesties, issues within the conpetence of the Suprene Council or

i ssues affecting the fulfilnment of obligations arising under international
treaties. Simlar restrictions obtained for |ocal referenduns.

5. Concerning the possibility of censorship and the dom nation of one

| anguage or one party, it should be pointed out that under the Constitution no
one could be forced to accept any political, religious or social ideology.

The State | anguage was Bel arusi an, but Russian was freely used - and, indeed,
in a referendumheld in May 1995, 83.3 per cent of those voting had expressed
thensel ves in favour of giving Russian equal status with Belarusian. Nationa
mnorities were guaranteed equal political, economc and social rights and
freedons, including the right to study and use their own | anguages. Under the
Education Act, State bodies could intervene in the affairs of educationa
institutions only where their activities ran counter to the Constitution, to



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 3

the law, to the principles of State education policy or to the statutes of the
institutions thensel ves. Education was provided according to plans and
programres aimed at neeting the State's needs and taking account of specific
regi onal and national requirenents, at the sane time allowing full scope for a
variety of ideol ogical viewpoints.

6. As to whether the Covenant could be directly invoked before the courts,
article 8 of the Constitution recogni zed the prinmacy of the generally

recogni zed principles of international |aw and ensured that |egislation
conforned to them It was not possible to conclude international treaties
that conflicted with the Constitution. International treaties were not an
integral part of the donestic |law of Belarus and in order to be applied they
had to be formally incorporated in the country's legislation. Conformty of
national |egislation with the generally recognized principles of internationa
| aw was ensured prinarily through the enactnent of new | aws or through
amendnents to existing legislation. Al international human rights
instruments had been carefully studied in the process of drafting

the 1994 Constitution. As aresult, there was an article of the Constitution
corresponding to each article of the Covenant, and a nunber of |aws had al so
been passed and put into effect.

7. The State was based on the principle of the separation of powers, with
the legislative, executive and judicial branches formng a systemof “checks
and bal ances”. The Suprene Council was the hi ghest permanent organ of State

power. The President - the head of State and of the executive branch - was
directly elected for a maxi mumof two five-year terns and was enpowered under
the Constitution (art. 100) to protect the sovereignty, national security and
territorial integrity of Belarus, to ensure political and econonic stability
and to uphold the people's rights and freedons. |In carrying out his tasks,
he was assisted by a Cabinet, headed by a Prine Mnister. Judges were

i ndependent and bound only by the law. No interference was allowed in the
adm ni stration of justice. Judges of the Suprenme Court and of the H gher
Econom ¢ Court were chosen by the Supreme Council and those of regional,

muni cipal, mlitary and econom c or specialized courts were appoi nted by the
Presi dent.

8. The duties of the State Labour Inspectorate, whose statutes had been
approved by Cabinet of Mnisters Decision No. 632 of 20 Novenber 1995, were to
oversee and ensure conpliance with | egislation regardi ng occupational health
and safety, to prevent violations of |abour |aws and where necessary to inpose
sanctions, within its statutory powers, on enployers. The Inspectorate al so
coordi nated the activities of ad hoc supervisory bodies specializing in health
and safety inspections, and coll ected and anal ysed i nfornati on on accidents at
wor k, occupational diseases and breaches of |abour |egislation.

9. Sone further denographic information had al ready been nade avail able to
the Committee in the addendumto the report. It should be noted that the
popul ati on growth rate had begun to fall in the early 1970s. In 1993 deat hs
had exceeded births, and had it not been for immgration - which had been
significantly higher than emgration - the overall popul ati on woul d have
decreased. There had never been a high density of population - currently |ess
than 50 peopl e per square kilometre - and negative popul ation growh due to a
fall in birth rates and a substantial rise in nortality rates had been



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 4

regi stered since 1994. Wereas a popul ati on coul d be naintained only if wonen
of chil d-bearing age on average each had 2.15 children, in Belarus the

rel evant figure was 1.7 children per worman. Average |life expectancy in 1994
had been 75.4 years for women and 64.9 years for men.

10. Bel arus ained to establish not just a nmarket system but a

soci ally-oriented market econony, with progress in that direction the fullest
guarantee of the people's economc, social and cultural rights. Privatization
was not an end initself and if it threatened econom c and social rights it
was unacceptable. The economc situation was still serious, but the worst

now seened to be over. The gross domestic product (CGDP) for the first

ni ne nonths of 1996 had been sonewhat higher than in 1995 and there had been
a 2.6 per cent increase in industrial output over the sane period.
Productivity had risen in ferrous netallurgy, petrochemcals and forestry.
Many enterprises had adapted to narket conditions and were produci ng
conpetitive goods. The public's purchasing power for a range of products had
risen. Dversification was a top priority, and firstly involved the
conversion of the defence industries and use of their great technol ogica
potential to increase production efficiency. There was unfortunately a higher
consunption of energy per unit output in industry and agriculture than in
western countries, leading to higher costs of production and | ower
conpetitiveness.

11. Future conpliance with the Covenant coul d be seen fromtwo standpoints.
In terns of the law, Belarus would, of course, continue to strive for the

hi ghest possi bl e guarantees for economc, social and cultural rights, as coul d
be seen fromthe draft anendnents to the Constitution - ainmed at considerably
expanding the provisions relating to such rights - that were to be voted on in
a national referendum The | aw naking process was directed fully at bringing
national legislation into line with the provisions of the Covenant and ot her

i nternational human rights instruments. Economcally, too, advances towards
full er enjoynment of econonic and social rights could be expected. If the
economi ¢ and soci al devel oprment programme for 1996- 2000 was successf ul

GDOP woul d be 20 per cent higher than in 1996 by the year 2000, industria
output growi ng by 25 per cent and real noney inconmes by 20 per cent.

12. Bel arus was in favour of the preparation of an optional protocol to
t he Covenant establishing a conplaints procedure as an effective means of
pronmoting the rights contained therein

13. Under the Constitution, wonen had the same rights as nen and in | aw t hey
even had certain advantages over men. A nagjor difficulty they faced was in
finding work, owing to the fact that |abour |aws gave themtoo many privil eges
affecting their ability to conpete in the enploynment narket. That issue was
di scussed in the addendumto the report. Wnen also |ived considerably |onger
than nmen, were better educated, and were nore likely to obtain custody of
children in the event of divorce. There renained fewer wonen than nmen in the
public adm nistration, although a positive trend had been noted there, too.

For exanple, the President of the National Bank of Belarus and two mnisters
were worren. The idea of enacting a |aw setting a quota for femal e
representation in governnent bodies was being widely discussed. It would thus
be wong to separate the issue of the advancenent of wonen fromthat of

i mproving the standard of living of the popul ation as a whol e.



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 5

14, The Constitution and |egislation of Belarus did not permt

di scrimnation agai nst displaced or statel ess persons or repressed peopl es.
The legal status of non-citizens was, of course, different fromthat of
citizens, but the differences were as provided for in international human
rights instruments. Al persons pernmanently resident in Belarus at the tine
of its declaration of independence had automatically recei ved Bel arusi an
citizenship, while ethnic Bel arusians who had then been |iving abroad and

| ater wished to return hone coul d obtain Belarusian citizenship through a
sinplified procedure. Under the G tizenship Act, persons applying to becone
citizens of Belarus had to have a reasonabl e know edge of the | anguage, conply
with the Constitution and | aws of Bel arus, have |ived pernmanently in the
Republic for seven years, and have a | egal source of incone.

15. Not a single ethnic group living in Belarus had been persecuted, and
consequently there was no problemof a mass return of popul ations. There
were, however, up to 20,000 illegal mgrants in Belarus, mainly from Asi a.

Sonme were in transit on their way to western Europe, while others sought to
settle in Belarus. Unfortunately, inplenentation of the Refugee Act was being
del ayed by a shortage of funds. Once the nachinery was working, nmany illegal

i mm grants woul d be able to obtain refugee status. |In Belarus refugees had
the same rights as foreigners and statel ess persons, whose | egal position was
di scussed in the addendumto the report.

16. When setting the goal of creating a socially-oriented nmarket econony,
the CGovernnent had been aware of the need for |arge-scale privatization. The
country's econom ¢ and soci al devel oprment progranme for 1996- 2000 call ed for
the conpletion of the privatization of snall enterprises, a quickening of

the process of denationalization of |arge enterprises, the introduction of
bankr upt cy proceedi ngs and |iqui daton of sone hopel essly inefficient
enterprises, and the creation of conditions to attract nore foreign capital
investnent. Priority would be given to the privatization of trade and service
institutions and of snall and nedi umsized enterprises in the manufacturing
and agri-food sectors, the wood-working and construction and

bui | di ng-materials industries. Privatization would be carried out with the
agreenent of the enterprise workforce, which would continue to have a deci sive
voice with regard to enpl oyment and social matters.

17. Unenpl oynent statistics for 1991-1995 were given in the addendumto the
report, with a breakdown by age and by | ength of unenpl oynent. Since 1993
the ratio of job seekers to vacancies had increased 50 per cent to reach 7.4
to 1. That increase was due not so nuch to high rates of growth of

unenpl oynent - currently 3.9 per cent of the economcally active popul ation -
as to an alnost conplete halt in job creation. An end to the economc crisis
woul d autonatically inprove the situation

18. The term “hi dden unenpl oynent” reflected the fact that not al

unenpl oyed persons applied to the | abour exchanges for work and were therefore
not counted in the statistics. Wrkers engaged in only part-time work or on

i ndefinite unpaid | eave had begun to be included only in 1996 and, accordi ng
to prelimnary estimates, represented up to 20 per cent of the | abour force.
Many of themheld two or even three jobs. The Government had drawn up a set
of measures to inprove the enpl oynment situation, including |egislation
providing for tenporary disnissal with the guarantee of being rehired; the



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 6

| easing or tenporary transfer of redundant plant and equi pnent to private
entrepreneurs who woul d guarant ee production and enpl oynment at the enterprise
concerned; the entitlement of workers released by the enterprise to rent or
use freed prem ses and capacities on favourable terns or at no charge for
their own productive use; a change-over to a systemof registration whereby
new enterprises created, anong others, by unenpl oyed persons woul d be exenpted
fromtaxation for at |east two years; Government incentives for banks and

fi nance houses to provide the unenpl oyed with soft |oans to start up their own
busi nesses; the devel opnent of a broad system of vocational training and
retrai ning; and the organi zati on of public works projects in areas of high
unenpl oyrent .

19. Replies to issues Nos. 15 to 17 on the list of issues were to be found
in the addendumto the report. Reference should also be nade to the State
programme to inprove the status of wonen drawn up by the Cabinet of Mnisters,
whi ch included nmeasures to reduce fenmal e unenpl oynment and to train wonen
entrepreneurs. |In order to clai munenpl oynent benefit, an applicant had to
make a declaration of income at the State enpl oynent service. The benefit was
general |y payable for not nore than 6 nmonths, but in the case of nale workers
with over 25 years' service and fenal e workers enployed for at |east 20 years,
benefit was payable for an extra 2 cal endar weeks for every year of work
exceedi ng those peri ods.

20. There was a consi derabl e nunber of snall private businesses, especially
in the trade and services sector. The Covernnent considered the devel oprent
of small- and nedi um si zed busi nesses to be a fundanental conponent of the
economc reform It intended to enact |legislation to define their |ega
status, the procedures for establishing and registering them and their basic
right and obligations. Legislation to institute a sinplified systemfor
taxation of such enterprises had been adopt ed.

21. It would be wong to think that people out of work had only unenpl oynent
benefit as a means of support. There was a system of public assistance for
the nost needy under which, if incone per person in a famly was bel ow a
certain mninmum the menbers of the famly were entitled to aid in cash and in
kind. Moreover, in Belarus there was a wel | -devel oped system of subsidiary
plots or allotments and gardens for people to grow food. In 1995 incone from
entrepreneurial and other activities not officially counted had represented

12 per cent of the popul ation's total noney incone, showi ng that at |east sone
of the unenpl oyed had undecl ared i ncores.

22. It was inevitable that the purchasi ng power of the popul ati on shoul d
fall during a severe economc crisis. In Belarus, (P had fallen by half over
the past five years. The addendumto the report indicated, however, that
since 1994 the gap between the growh rates of consuner prices and of noney

i ncones - 116 per cent in 1993 - had narrowed to 77-78 per cent. The
CGovernnent's policy of protecting the | owinconme and socially vul nerable
segnents of the popul ati on had made it possible to soften the inpact of
inflation on their incones. Wile over five years the consumer price index
had risen by 50,000 tines, per capita nom nal noney incones had risen

by 28,000 tinmes and the average pension by 36,000 times. Mreover, the



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 7

first signs of an inprovenment in the standard of |iving had appeared. In
the first nine nonths of 1996, real noney incomes had increased by 5 per cent
conpared with the sanme period of the previous year, and real wages had risen
by 3 per cent. Successful inplenentation of the Republic's economc

devel opnent programme to the year 2000 woul d bring an increase in rea

noney i ncones of 105 per cent per year

23. Exhaustive informati on on Covernnent measures to create heal thy and
safe working conditions, as well as on the activities of the State Labour
I nspectorate, was given in the addendumto the report.

24, M. TEXIER speaking with reference to article 8 of the Covenant
expressed sone disquiet about the definition of a trade union in paragraph 28
of the report, where the words “public organi zati on” suggested that trade

uni ons were government-controll ed. He asked whether trade unions were

i ndependent in Bel arus and whether trade union pluralismexisted. A so, the
right to strike appeared to be unduly circunscribed by the conplicated
procedures to be fulfilled and by the requirenent for two weeks' notice. He
asked furthernore that several categories of workers were not allowed to
strike. Wile it was nornal for the police and arned forces not to be
entitled to strike, it was unusual to disallow power-supply workers from doi ng
so.

25. M. CEAUSU said that the working group had serious nisgivings about the
position with regard to trade unions in Belarus. Information fromthe

United States Departnent of State and the International Confederation of Free
Trade Unions quoted in the Secretariat's country analysis (E C 12/ CA 25)
suggested that the provisions of the Covenant were not bei ng observed.
According to those sources, the official trade unions' control over socia
functions usually perforned by the State was an obstacle to the growh of
true, independent trade unions, and workers were being prevented fromjoining
the trade union of their choice. Enterprises were said to be continuing to
deduct trade union dues fromworkers' pay for the account of the officia
trade unions. Mreover, inits report onits session in March 1996, the ILO
Comm ttee on Freedom of Association had called for changes in Bel arusian | aw
to permt workers to strike and to travel abroad to attend neetings. That
Committee had urged that trade unionists should not be inprisoned, that trade
uni on property should not be seized and that workers shoul d not be recruited
fromoutside to break strikes. The del egation mght wi sh to conment on those
matters. Sone information on the reason for the delay in registering certain
i ndependent trade unions woul d al so be appreci at ed.

26. M. THAPALIA asked for information on the nunber of trade unions in
Bel arus and their total menbership, on the extent to which they enjoyed the
right to strike and on whether collective bargaining was provided for. Sone
statistics on working hours woul d al so be wel cone.

27. M. RATTRAY agreed with M. Texier that the right to strike appeared to
be considerably restricted in Belarus. So many restrictions mght be a | egacy
of the former centrally planned econony and he wondered whet her any change in
attitude was contenpl ated, now that Bel arus was novi ng towards a narket
econony.



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 8

28. Ms. SATALINA (Belarus), drawing the attention of nenbers of the
Committee to paragraphs 28 and 30 of the report, said that at |east 38 trade
uni ons had already conplied with the legislation introduced in 1995 requiring
all associations to re-register with the authorities. They included the

Bel arusi an | ndependent Union, created in 1991 and representing mners,

chem cal, petroleum energy, transport and construction workers; the Free
Trade Union of Metallurgists; the Free Bel arusian Union and a | oca

i ndependent union of scientists and industrial workers. The Governnent had
drawn up a list of enterprises where strikes were not permtted in the
interests of public health and safety (para. 40 of the report).

29. Ms. KUPCHYNA (Belarus) referred to witten comments submtted by the
Covernnent to the Internati onal Labour Organization (ILO on 30 Cctober 1995
concerning grievances of the Mnsk transport workers’ union not upheld in
court, and on 9 Septenber 1996 regardi ng governnmental neasures to bring trade
union | egislation nmore into conformty with international standards and ILO
recommendations. A new draft |abour code had been approved in June 1996 and
vari ous denocratic institutions had been founded, including a National Council
on Labour and Soci al |ssues, conprising representatives of the Governnent,
trade uni ons and enpl oyers, and an i ndependent arbitration court for resolving
| abour disputes. The Governnent of Belarus would continue to work closely
with ILQO

30. Ms. SATALINA (Belarus) said that there were several instances of
parall el trade unions within the same workplace. The State allowed

i ndependent trade unions to operate at their own discretion; they were subject
only to the law Independent trade unions were indeed entitled to apply the
“check-of f” system (item 26 on the |list of issues). There had, noreover, been
cases of trade unions successfully defending that right in court. No new acts
regul ati ng trade uni ons had been adopted and there were no restrictions on the
est abl i shnent of trade unions for particul ar categories of workers. The right
of sone categories to take strike action was, however, limted.

31. M. WMR ZAMBRANO recal |l ed the question asked earlier concerning the
use of the word “public”, which suggested an organi zation run by the State.

32. M. ANTANOVICH (Belarus) explained that “public” was an overly literal
translation into English of the Russian word * obshchestvenny ”. In the present
context, the termneant a non-governnental or social organization or

association at liberty to forma trade union

33. M. RATTRAY asked whether any trade unions had been refused
re-registration, and, if so, on what grounds.

34. M. CEAUSU observed that various econom c freedons had been granted in
Bel arus and prices |iberated; however, unless wages and sal ari es kept pace

with inflation and trade union rights were fully protected, the chasm between
rich and poor could only widen. In order for the systemto function properly,



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 9

all the conponents of a market econony surely needed to be introduced at the
sane time; otherwise, a ngjority of the popul ati on woul d continue to suffer.

35. M. ANTANOVICH (Belarus), welconming M. Ceausu’ s assessnent, said that
the only restrictions to the formation of trade unions were those |aid down by
law. H's delegation was pl eased to announce that a conprom se appeared to
have been reached between the President and Parlianment in Belarus and the
forthcom ng constitutional referendumwas thus likely to take place in

har moni ous circunstances. He wished to stress that, during the difficult
transition towards a nmarket econony, both sides unequivocally supported the
right to strike and to social protection, as well as the right of workers to
air their grievances. The Conmittee woul d be sent copies of new | egislation
designed to incorporate the provisions of the various Covenants. Bel arus was
thus heading in the right direction.

36. No trade union had been denied the right to re-register, although the
process was being held up in sone cases, as answers were awaited to certain

qguestions posed by the authorities. The reason why so few trade unions had

applied to re-register was that many had di sbanded in the interimperiod and
new ones were only now bei ng forned.

37. M. CEAUSU asked whether pensions were considered a trade union matter
38. The CHAI RPERSON , speaking as a nenber of the Commttee, asked whether

trade unions in Belarus had retai ned those functions which had been
traditional during the Soviet era.

39. M. TEXIER pointed out the need to ensure that the Covenant was nade
known to the general public. The Commttee would have wel comed the
participation of trade unions and public representatives.

40. Ms. SATOLINA (Belarus) explained that the National Pension Fund covered
pensi ons, child allowances and other social benefits. In accordance with the
Act on pensions, the fund had its sources in contributions by enpl oyees and

enpl oyers, conpul sory soci al insurance paynents, State budgetary allocations
and voluntary contributions. Trade unions were not invol ved.

41. M. ANTANOVI CH (Belarus) said that trade unions still provided access to
ki ndergartens and holiday resorts, although they had been rather nore affl uent
under the old system The State had, however, contributed to sone extent,
particularly in the wake of the Chernobyl accident.

42. M. TEXIER asked why wonen did not enjoy the right to work as nany years
as men. He was surprised, noreover, at the early ages of retirenent in

Bel arus. Many countries were having difficulty in financing pensions, given

i ncreased nunbers of ol der persons and unenpl oyed people. In nmany capitali st
countries, pension funds were being privatized and voluntary contribution
systens introduced. Wat was the situation in Bel arus?



E/ C 12/ 1996/ SR 35/ Add. 1
page 10

43. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO asked whether the retirenent age was conpul sory
inthe public and private sectors. A so, were there any femnist associations
in Belarus?

44, The CHAI RPERSON , speaking as a nenber of the Conmttee, noted that the
average |life expectancy in Belarus was 79 years. How were the consequent |ong
retirenents financed?

45, M. AHVED asked whether the 1992 figure of 38 per cent of the State
budget devoted to social security, health and educati on had increased or
decreased between 1995 and 1996.

The public part of the neeting rose at 1 p.m




